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The Bank of Washburn, built in 1890, is a two plus attic story. Jbrownstpne 
aslilaj: building. Its steeply pitched hipped roof gives a tall, narrow^ 
profile, particularly domirant«ince the two story courthouse is the 
next tallest building in Washburn.

engaged
Sixteen2s£one columns encircle three sides of the first floor, defining 
fenestration, doors, and corners. The top third of the column shafts 
are scored, and the capitals have foliated ornamentation. First 
floor windows are either large glazed panels or sash. Five of them 
were replaced by smaller openings in the 1950s and 1960s, as was the 
main entrance. These are the only major alterations on the exterior.

The second floor is virtually intact, retaining many of the original 
window panes. Eight full-height, round-arched windows suggest Romanesque 
3J:XiiSS- The Slass panes in the tympanum are original, but have been 
painted over. In addition to the arched windows, there are paired, 
sash windows, and above the entry, small glazed openings....

The roof consists of a steeply pitched hipped portion closest
to the street corner and an adjacent hipped roof. Large,
hipped wall dormers interrupt ,the steep roof, while smaller dormers
accentuate the lower roof. A decorative stringcourse embellishes the
wall of the steeply pitched portion, below the wall dormers. The
original £0[£pj2r_jcopj: was tarred over in 1946, but the present owners
plan to restore it. A curved copper antefix adorns each roof*

Much of the original interior has been lost through the three changes 
in banking operations, adaptations for a restaurant, hotel^n<£ offices, 
and its recent conversion into apartment units. However, several marble 
sinks and fixtures still remain, as well as some of the original woodwork 
and the bank vault. The building is presently divided into five private 
apartments, with additional sleeping rooms in the half story. The elevator 
was removed in the 1960s. A small frame storage shed on the north elevation 
was added circa 1950.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Bank of Washburn is significant for the fine craftsmanship of the 
brownstone construction and as the largest and most distinctively designed 
commercial building in the City of Washburn. The building represents 
a period of economic growth and development in northern Wisconsin and 
is probably an early example of an architect-designed building of local 
brownstone in that region*

In 1887, A. C. Probert founded the first bank in Bayfield County at 
Washburn, four years after the town's founding. Three years later he built 
a sturdy building for the bank. Mindful of a fire that destroyed part 
of Washburn in 1888, he chose local brownstone as the construction material.

The Romanesque Revival Bank of Washburn was built of Potsdam, sandstone, 
most commonly known as brownstone. The quarry south of Washburn yielded 
the stone used in the building. Because of several disastrous fires in 
the late nineteenth century in northern Wisconsin, brownstone became a 
very popular construction material. Many of the region's commercial, 
religious, and public structures utilized the stone that was so prevalent 
in the northern coastal fields.

The bank building cost about $25,000 to build. Only the first floor 
was designed for use by the bank; upper floors were rented as offices.2

1. Inscribed in stone over the entrance; also, The Washburn News, 
vol. **, December 27, 1890, p. 1

2. The Washburn News, vol. 4, January 17, 1891, p. 1
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION 

Lots 31 and 32 of Block 58 of the original plat of Washburn, Wisconsin
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In 1895 A.C. Probert, the bank's founder and president, was convicted of 
illegal banking practices. He was sent to prison and the bank closed. After 
years of litigation, ownership was turned over to the village and the building 
was leased to the Bayfield County Bank. In 1923 this bank, too, was closed 
for illegal practices.

From 1924-1954 the First National Bank of Washburn occupied the building. Since 
1954 ownership and functions have changed several times. The District Attorney 
and Forest Service leased the old bank quarters; later a restaurant was housed 
there. By the 1960s the entire building was leased as private apartments.

The Bank of Washburn is probably the finest building in Washburn. At one time 
it was considered the finest building in Bayfield County. The warm reddish-brown 
walls, the strikingly narrow profile of the building, and the interesting 
texture and design of the details lends the building a quality that is rare in 
this sparsely populated part of the state. The building is an eye-catching 
element of the main street of Washburn, readily apparent as the most substantial 
and distinctive of the village's buildings.

3. The Washburn News, vol. 4, 12-27-90, p.l

11. Barbara Wyatt
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